
 

 

 
30th August 2023 
 

 
Uttlesford District Council 
London Road 
Saffron Walden 
CB11 4ER 

By email only  
 

 
Thank you for requesting advice on this application from Place Services’ ecological advice service. This service 
provides advice to planning officers to inform Uttlesford District Council planning decisions with regard to 
potential ecological impacts from development. Any additional information, queries or comments on this advice 
that the applicant or other interested parties may have, must be directed to the Planning Officer who will seek 
further advice from us where appropriate and necessary.  

 

 
Uttlesford Application Reference: UTT/23/1970/PINS 
PINS Reference: S62A/2023/0022 
Location: Passenger Terminal Stansted Airport 
Proposal: Partial demolition of the existing Track Transit System and full demolition of 2 no. skylink 
walkways and the bus-gate building. Construction of a 3-bay extension to the existing passenger 
building, baggage handling building, plant enclosure and 3 no. skylink walkways and associated 
hardstanding 
 
Dear ,  
 
Thank you for consulting Place Services on the above application. 
 

Recommend Refusal  
Further information required/Temporary holding objection  
No ecological objections  
Recommended Approval subject to attached conditions X 

 
Summary  
We have reviewed the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (Mott MacDonald, July 2023) and Biodiversity 
Net Gain Report (Mott MacDonald, July 2023) relating to the likely impacts of development on 
designated sites, protected and Priority species & habitats and identification of appropriate mitigation 
measures.  
 
We have also reviewed the information submitted to demonstrate that Biodiversity Net Gain can/will 
be delivered within the timescale promised and to meet any mandatory BNG requirements at the time 
of submission. 
 



 

 

We are satisfied that there is sufficient ecological information available for determination of this 
application.  
 
This provides certainty for the LPA of the likely impacts on designated sites, protected and Priority 
species & habitats and, with appropriate mitigation measures secured, the development can be made 
acceptable.  
 
The mitigation measures identified in the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (Mott MacDonald, July 
2023) should be secured by a condition of any consent and implemented in full. This is necessary to 
conserve and enhance protected and Priority species particularly those recorded in the locality. 
 
We also support the proposed reasonable biodiversity enhancements including the creation of 
hibernacula for amphibians and reptiles, which have been recommended to secure net gains for 
biodiversity, as outlined under Paragraph 174d of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021). The 
reasonable biodiversity enhancement measures should be outlined within a Biodiversity 
Enhancement Layout and should be secured by a condition of any consent. 
 
In relation to BNG, we have some concerns with the habitat descriptions within the Biodiversity Net 
Gain Report (Mott MacDonald, July 2023). The description of the offsite habitat, which is due to be 
enhanced to ensure a net gain in habitat units at the site is achieved, is very brief with only two species 
mentioned which are not characteristic of grasslands in Essex. As achieving 10% net gain is not a 
planning policy of Uttlesford District Council it is not a requirement at this stage, however, given this 
habitat supports more than 10 species per m2 according to the condition assessment, we would 
recommend further information is provided. This information can be provided within a BNG 
Management and Monitoring Plan (MMP). This should also provide further details as to how the 
condition of the habitat is to be improved and how this will be managed over a 30-year period. This 
BNG MMP should be secured by a condition of any consent. 
 
This will enable LPA to demonstrate its compliance with its statutory duties including its biodiversity 
duty under s40 NERC Act 2006.  
 
Impacts will be minimised such that the proposal is acceptable, subject to the conditions below based 
on BS42020:2013. 
 
We recommend that submission for approval and implementation of the details below should be a 
condition of any planning consent. 
 
Recommended conditions 
 

1. ACTION REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ECOLOGICAL APPRAISAL RECOMMENDATIONS 
“All mitigation measures and/or works shall be carried out in accordance with the details 
contained in the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (Mott MacDonald, July 2023) as already 
submitted with the planning application and agreed in principle with the local planning 
authority prior to determination.” 
 



 

 

Reason: To conserve protected and Priority species and allow the LPA to discharge its duties 
under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife 
& Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and s40 of the NERC Act 2006 (Priority habitats & 
species). 

 
2. PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT: BIODIVERSITY NET GAIN MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING 

PLAN  
No development shall commence unless and until a Biodiversity Net Gain Management and 
Monitoring Plan to ensure that there is a measurable biodiversity net gain within a 30 year 
period as a result of the development has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The net biodiversity impact of the development shall be measured in 
accordance with the Government’s Metric as applied in the area in which the site is situated at 
the relevant time.  
 
The content of the Biodiversity Net Gain Management and Monitoring Plan should include the 
following: 

a) Proposals for the on-site biodiversity net gain;  
b) A management and monitoring plan for onsite biodiversity net gain including 30 year 

objectives, management responsibilities, maintenance schedules and a methodology 
to ensure the submission of monitoring reports in years 2,5,10,15,20,25 and 30 from 
commencement of development, demonstrating how the BNG is progressing towards 
achieving its objectives, evidence of arrangements and any rectifying measures 
needed;  

c) Proposals for any off-site biodiversity net gain provision including a comprehensive 
species list of the baseline data;  

d) A management and monitoring plan for all offsite biodiversity net gain including 30 
year objectives, management responsibilities, maintenance schedules and a 
methodology to ensure the submission of monitoring reports in years 2,5,10,15,20,25 
and 30 from commencement of development, demonstrating how the BNG is 
progressing towards achieving its objectives, evidence of arrangements and any 
rectifying measures needed;  

 
The development shall be implemented in full accordance with the requirements of the 
approved Biodiversity Net Gain Management and Monitoring Plan.  
 
Reason: To allow the development to demonstrate measurable biodiversity net gains and 
allow LPA to discharge its duties under the NPPF and s40 of the NERC Act 2006 (Priority habitats 
& species). 

 
3. PRIOR TO ANY WORKS ABOVE SLAB LEVEL: BIODIVERSITY ENHANCEMENT LAYOUT  

“A Biodiversity Enhancement Layout for bespoke biodiversity enhancement shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  
 
The content of the Biodiversity Enhancement Layout shall include the following: 

a) detailed designs or product descriptions for bespoke biodiversity enhancements; and 



 

 

b) locations, orientations and heights for bespoke biodiversity enhancements by 
appropriate maps and plans. 

 
The enhancement measures shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details 
prior to occupation and all features shall be retained in that manner thereafter.” 
 
Reason: To enhance protected and Priority species & habitats and allow the LPA to discharge 
its duties under the NPPF 2021 and s40 of the NERC Act 2006 (Priority habitats & species).  

 
Please contact us with any queries.  
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
Ella Gibbs ACIEEM BSc (Hons) 
Senior Ecological Consultant 
placeservicesecology@essex.gov.uk 
 
Place Services provide ecological advice on behalf of Uttlesford District Council  
Please note: This letter is advisory and should only be considered as the opinion formed by specialist 
staff in relation to this particular matter. 

mailto:placeservicesecology@essex.gov.uk



